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D iana Matth e ws Interviewing C h r is W ren. ON A p r il 10th I went to the 

home of C h r is W ren At 36 Concession Road, F ort E r ie .  The intervie w  

started a t  2:00 p . m .  a n d  lasted f o r  1 hou r a n d  1 5  m inutes. 

Hi C h r is, can you g ive me your full n ame ? 

C h r istopher Tho m as Wren.  

H o w long have you l ived in F o rt E r i e
,
? 

S ince 1929. 

H o w  old are you now ? 

S eventy-six . 

Iv ' e  been told you know quite a bit a bout the P eace B r idge, what can you 

tell me about it ? 

C.R: Well ,  I re m e m be r  when they opened the b r idge , I w as going to school in 

H a m ilt on and I was picked in a school choir t o  sing for the P r ince of Wales 

as h e  came down to open it . He and the m otorcade went through Ham ilton 

and I was one of the t wo students f r om the school who sang in the choir .  

Today I can 't  sing a note,  but  in tqose days I could ! 

D.M: W e re you there when it was be ing bu ilt ? 

C.R: N o ,  I was in H a m ilton.  The b r idge was built and .co m pleted before I ca me 

t o  F ort E r ie .  When I came t o  Fort E r ie the Peace B r idge was the only 

employer that was . . . . . .  had anybody work ing and that was the C ustoms 

and Imm igrat ion and the br idge maintenance . The railroads were flat , 

the town w as in a complete depression, it had gone bankrupt . There w as 

n o  Welfare,  there was no R e l ief and that w as tough t imes . We haven't 

got anywhere near that now, nowhere nea r .  Many and many a day I' d go 

out on calls, I worked for the Power C o m pany . I' d go into a house and 

there'd  be a fam ily there,  the ch ild r e n  would have a potato and a glass 

of water for their  breakfast . The mother and father,  a young couple, 

would be tear ing their hair out , they didn't know what to do. Everybody 

lost their h o m es, m o rtgages, taxes, but nobody claimed the m ,  so they 

lived in the m .  There was no way they could put them out ,  they had no 

place to go.  Invar iably I' d have . . . . . .!  would buy grocer ies when I went •llO 

a home and saw the con d it ions, and I had a boss who was W . D .  Brown,  

H e  was managing at the Power C o m pany and I' d go in and tell  h i m  the 

situation I' d run into and he'd say W h at did you do about it ? Well  I said 

I went down t o  the grocery store a n d  had the grocer take them u p  five 

d ollars worth of groce r ies and not tell them where it came from . He'd  

reach in  h is pocket and hand me two-fifty and that happened four  or five 

t i m es a week all dur ing the winter o f  1929. As I say the Cu;toms Officers 
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in those days were gett ing 8 0  dollars a month, that was their pay . They 

w e re working, the Im m igration was working and the P eace B r idge was 

operat ing.  Other than that I don't think there was anyth ing m o v ing in F o rt 

E r ie .  They o wned coal b ins because there was no heat the way it is now. 

They heated with coal furnaces and coal st oves . S o m e  of them owed as 

m uch as 800 dollars for coal .  Mf orde rs were back in those days if it  was 

a l ittle job to charge a dollar and if it was a big job,  t wo dollars. But 

if I d idn't th ink they could pay for it , not t o  charge them at all.  S o  there 

was very very few charges that I made dur ing 1929 and 1930. The whole 

t own was co m pletely flat , completely. Nobody knew what to do. The Ont a r io 

G overnm ent gave the town so much a month to keep it going . They had 

n o  money at all . They couldn't pay out no Welfare , they had no Relief,  

they had no way t o  get anyth ing. The Power C o m pany and the G as C o m pa n y  

w e r e  working because w e  had to supply elect r icity a n d  t h e y  had to supply 

gas. Other than that t h is town was a complete railroad town .  The whole 

t o wn depended on the railroa d ,  and it was flat . 

D.M: When did the railroad st op com ing t h rough F ort E r ie ? 

C.R: Well, it's st ill going t h r ough F o rt E r ie but it's . . . . . .  There's no passenger 

station now. I don't know. I haven't hauled that up,  it's been years and 

( years since they took both the C . N . R .  and the T . H .&B . stat ion out . They 

had the C . N . R .  on one side of the tracks and the C anad ian P acific or  the 

T . H .&B . on the other side of the tracks. There was noth ing doing at all 

( 

o n  the railroa d .  The t r a ins we ren't m oving, not a th ing . 

D.M: What did you do for ent e rt a in ment ? 

C.R: There wasn't much you "�''1J.:�. do.  Youd'e go to B uffalo . That was the only 

place ,y.ou could go.  They had a few d ances around and th ings like that ,  

· soeials with t h e  L ions C l u b .  They wer e  the predom inant club i n  F ort E r ie 

at that t i m e .  We fo r m e d  the J unior Chamber of C omme rce back in those 

daysand I was appoint e d  on a co m m itee to rebuild the arena.  The old 

arena had caved in with a snowstor m that wint e r ,  and we started out to 

get it  rebu ilt and it  was a job!  I open e d  m y  mouth and said so meth ing and 

so they appointed m e  the cha i r m an o f  the arena co m m itee.  F o rtunately 

I had a . . . . .  The v ice president of the com m itee of N iagra F alls was John 

L a wson who o wned the N iagra Falls J unior F lyers. He was quite interest e d  

in hockey and he t o l d  m e  to use a l l  t h e  t i m e  I wanted t o  g e t  the arena 

g o ing,  and we had one awful job.  I interviewed I guess f ive or six people 

in F o rt E r ie ,  m anagers of fir ms, to ask them to take over cha ir m ansh ip 
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of the arena co m m i  tee and we couldn't  get anybody.  F inally it was suggest e d  

that l g o  to W alter D e itcher who k new aircraft and he t o o k  i t  h o o k ,  line 

and sinker .  He was the chair man of the co m m itee . I spent three solid months 

in h is office every day from n ine t o  f ive organiz ing and gett ing the th ing 

g o ing.  We raised enough . . . . .  We raised quite a bit of money but we d idn't 

have enough . The super intendent of H orton Steel,  McMu rt r ie ,  was president 

o f  the L ions Club and he got together the cohorts and he was able to get 

the town to put so m uch m oney in a d ebenture and they would guarantee 

it . W ith h is help we were able to get the bu ild ing u p  and got the bu ilding 

reconst ruct e d ,  that was the f irst arena that was bu ilt . When we bu ilt it , 

it was a t in shell made by a co mpany that bu ilds steel bu ild ings and it 

was guaranteed to stand winds up to 100 m . p . h .  F o r  so m e  reason or other 

they conde m ned it after a few years and had to rebuild another one.  But 

that first one . . . . . .  When we got the arena bu ilt , we run out of m oney befor e  

w e  h a d  any l ights i n  it . I p u t  t h e  l ights i n  t h e  build ing a s  a donat ion to 

the m .  I th ink it  cost m e  around 180 0  dollars t o  put the l ights in at the 

t im e ,  and they had no money to pay me so that was m y  donat ion to the 

arena to get it going . We had many m any events in that arena. We put 

on a indust r ial sho w  in there and we had people from Ottawa co me down 

h e re and told us that they never saw anyth ing l ike it . We had Strong 

Cobb A rner in town at that t ime and they were making pills and they ca m e  

u p  there and set up m ach inery a n d  m a de cand ies for t h e  k ids, pour ing 

the m out by the bushel load.  W e  had very good success with that arena . 

I r e m e mber the chap that managed it , we met , Louie Ziff was the mayor 

at  the t im e .  W e  met in h is office and a fellow name of Zieg S m ith he 

was a radio announcer at WGR and h e  l ived at E r ie Beach . He ca m e  down 

w ith a proposit ion that he' d m anage the arena.  He wouldn't take any money 

unt il they cleared ten thousand dollars over top of all expenses. A n d  when 

they got to t wenty thousand,  he'd get fi fty pe rcent . Now th is was t wenty 

pe rcent clea r  profit, and then he'd get up to seventy percent if he got 

a r ound th irty thousa n d .  Well we all looked at h i m  and we had to g ive h im 

the j ob because we couldn't see how he's gonna clear ten thousand dollars 

over paying off the debenture the t o w n  had quoted for the th ing, the operat ing 

e x penses and that . B ut h e  was up in the fifty percent bracket . He really 

m ade that th ing go . We had teams co m ing f r o m  all over the United States, 

N o rth Carolina, ca m e  up here to pract ice h e r e .  The m otels, the Httel 

F o rt E r ie was packed,  all the hotels and that were packed for the training 

p e r iod . He really made that arena go.  
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D.M: Is it still  standing ? 

C.R: N o ,  that's w h e re the present arena is now . They conde mned the build ing a n d  

( the town then was f inancially able to rebu ild another arena.  I don't knows 

that they got any better ,  w e  had the same ice service that they have today 

and they just put a new bu ilding around it.  W e  only bu ilt a t in shell.  But 

it got us by and w e  had very very good success w ith it. We paid the town 

back, paid the debenture off and got everyth ing clear w it h in three years .  

S o m eth ing t h at very few people know and I w as fortunate that I wo rked 

fo r the Pow e r  C o m pany and m y  boss t old m e  to forget the Power Co m pany 

a n d  get the arena buil t ,  and as I say I spent every day up there, We' d  :g0� 

d o w n, we'd have our lunch in the execut ive d in ing roo m at 12o' clock and 

back up there ' t il five . N ine o'clock the next morning . I was ther three 

s o l id m onths . I remember sayi ng to W alter D ietcher one day, Walter , what 

d o  you do h e r e ? What do you mean ? I said well the re's  a 'door com ing 

f r o m  the General Office in there,  here's  the door I come in, the front doo r ,  

I said n o w  I d o n ' t  see a soul i n  here b u t  you a n d  I a l l  d a y  long. You don't 

s ign a pape r ,  you don' t do anyth ing. Oh, he said,  t h is pliace runs itself.':-•�­

H e  was so enthusiastic about it he was able to raise quite a bit of money. 

When we ca m e  to t i m e  of sett ing a quota what w e  were gonna do, I said 

( t o  m y  boss,  what'll  w e  do , how w ill w e  start th is ? Well  he said I 'll  start 

( 

it rolling for you . We have s o  m any e m ployees here and I ' ll  donate three 

thousand dolla r s .  Now if we've got thirty e m ployees,  thats a hundred dollar s  

ap iece. N o w  we s e t  that as a standard for t h e  r e s t  of t h e  indust ry, wh ich 

we t r ied to g e t  out of all the industry that we went around to. We had 

s o m e  very sport m inded people then,  George S t raton of the Mentholaturn 

and McMu r t r ie at H o rton S teel and it was Walter D ietcher at the F leet 

A irc raft,  John Lawson at our own co m pany and through their efforts we 

really got the th ing going. Now I re m e mber that you were talk ing about 

the P eace B r idge , that th ing was bu ilt like a fort when it was first built , 

the towers,  the concrete towers all a r ound it , I r e m e mbe r that when I 

first  came t o  town,  but it seemed that ever y  few years they had to make 

s o m e  changes and I w as in on the renovation of about three different t imes 

that they redone all  the buildings and rew ired the place and th ose contract o r s  

used to r u n  a n y w h e r e  from 700 thousand to a m illion dollars f o r  t h e  general  

contracts when they made their changes.  The Peace B r idge always made 

m o ne y !  That was an asset,  g ood business . Mr. Bayer in Buffalo was the 

man that financed it and the understst  and ing was that at the end of 70 

years he would hand it over to Government s ,  free. No s t r ings at tached 

t o  it , wh ich h e  did. The C anadian Government has one s ide and the A mer ican 
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Governm ent has the other side.  Th e A m erican Govern m ent get 

their money , they send it back to the city of Buffalo and they have 

their say on that end and the Canad ian s ide, F ort Erie, don't get 

n o  money.  They get so much in lieu of taxes . The F ederal Government 

takes it all anct gives F ort E r ie peanut s  out of it .  Why they don't 

g ive the same th ing in F o r t  E r ie as they do in Buffalo I don' t kno w .  

I t ' s  been a very very good t h ing for F o rt Erie,  it's supplied them 

an awful lot of work,  an awful lot of work, both Cust o m s ,  I m m igrat ion 

and trucke r s .  I th ink w e ' re the second port next to Detroit Cl$ ifar 

as traffic is conce rned . 

D.M: Y ou said you had been to E r ie Beach , can you tell P1e s o meth ing 

about that ? 

C.R: E r ie Beach ? I vaguely . . . . .  I came down two or three t i m e s  frorl 

H amilton and went up to E r ie Beach . It was an amuse ment park,  

s imilar to Crystal Beach, and when the owner died,  I forget what 

his  name was now . . . . .  Bardol .  When Bardol died h is sister- in-law 

ran the bus iness and the boys who owned Crystal Beach bough t 

them out and took everything that was any good up to C rystal Beach . 

They only left the foundations and the railroad , F ort E r ie S nake 

H ill and P acific,  r e m e mbe r that ? Running up along the r iverfront 

had an engineer and a fireman and he'd stoke up the fire and go 

back and he was the conductor ! It had three l ittle cars on it and 

it run from the fe rry up to E r ie Beach . When the Peace B r idge come 

through that knocked that for a loop because the Peace B r idge 

went r ight over the railroad and old W . F .  W ilson was one of the 

p r i m e  fact ors in get t ing the br idge through as far as the Canad ian 

end was conce rned, he was a very strong L ibe ral and the L ibe rals 

were in power at that t ime and he was working at the C anadian 

end of it . That was Ray Wilsons father,  the law)er that just recently 

d i e d .  And he had . . . . .  There was three C ustoms B rokers in F ort  E r ie, 

W . F .  W ilson, S m eaton was the other one and Duke Mcintyre . Today 

there's about a hundred of 'em out the re! There w e re just the three 

o f  the m .  W . F . W ilson built that big bu ilding up there, he was the 

first one . They more or less wo rked out of their homes o r  l ittle 

shacks down on the Bouleva r d ,  that's where they had their  offices ,  

i f  y o u  could call ' e m  offices a n d  they u h  . . . . .  W .F. built t h i s  build ing 

that 's  up there today and he was one o f  the or iginals,  the only or iginal 

that 's  left . 

D.M: D o  you reme mber when the. park close d ? 
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C.R: N o ,  the park was closed when I came to F ort E r ie .  I had came from H a m ilton . 

In those days it was an awful long trip  to c o m e  from H a m i lton 

t o  F ort E r ie .  By the t i m e  you drove from H a m ilton to Fort E r ie ,  

y o u  had about t w o  hours i n  t h e  park and you went back h o m e  again 

because it took s ix or seven hours to  m ake the t r ip from here to 

H a m ilton . There was no h igh w ays,  it was all stone roads and the 

cars  were lucky, if you had a good car you could make the h ills 

and get up and down and get t h is far ! There was very few cars 

o n  the roads in those days , you d idn't  have to worry about traffic, 

. all  you had to worry about was horses , horse and buggies,  they' d 

rear up when a car come along. But uh .. . . .  I re m e mber going up 

there,  as I say we only spent a couple of hours there and then we 

headed back for home.  They had a ferris wheel and the figure e.ight 

and a few th ings and they had a big dance hall up there and that 

sat out there,  out in the lak e .  The foundat ions for that are stil l 

cut in the lake . But uh .. . . it wasn't  do ing m uch business at that 

t ime , when the P eace bridge come over, they' d come over the 

br idge and go up to C rystal Beach . Otherwise the people usffi 

c o m e  over on the ferry and get on the tra in and go up there,  

there was no cars,  people didn't  have aut o m obiles back in those 

days . 

I was gonna say that The Old F ort is som ething that should 

be looked int o .  I don't  know why it hasn't been thought of. It 's  the 

only A m e r ican Fort in the B r it ish Empire . It 's  not no longer the 

B r it ish E m p ire but in those days it was and when the war finished 

the B r it ish gave the A me r icans F ort N iagra, the A me r icans give 

the Canadians F ort E r ie .  Now they uh . . . .  The B r it ish attacked 

Fort E r ie and in the process of the attack, as the B r i t ish soldiers 

w e re going over the walls into the fort, a B r it ish shell h it the a m munit io n  

d u m p  a n d  blew it . It k illed everybody in the f o r t  a n d  a l l  sur rounding 

the fort .  They j ust  took all the bod ie s ,  dug a hole and threw them 

in the ground. Both B r i t ish and A m er icans. They could tell the 

d ifferent ones when they dug them u p  and replanted them. The 

buttons on their unifo r m s  were brass and they were s t ill  there.  

They could tell who was B r it ish and who was A me r ican.  Now why 

s o m ebody don't th ink t o  set the F ort up as a tourist  attraction,  

wh ich was one of the best in the whole continent I th ink. If they 

s e t  that up .. . . .  It 's  an A me r ican F o rt because it 's  bu ilt in the shape 

of a star and that's the way they built their F o r t s .  The B r it ish built 
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their  F o rts square or round,  they didn't  have any .. . . .  if you look 

at that fort you'll see it's exactly as a star. It was adve r t ised in 

that way,  an A me r ican fort. I think the tourist traffic would be 

t e r r ific .  People come up and don't know it's there . There should 

be m o re advertising to it and th ings l ike that . I think the . . . .  I ' m 

sure the Park C o m m ision; who operate the fort,  will co6pe rate 

with anybody that wants t o  do so meth ing about it. It would be 

one of the better th ings, I th ink it would . . . . .  in the su m me r  t i m e  

it would create a l o t  of e m ployment . N iagra F alls New York was 

where the B r i t ish . . . . .  see they were in the Un ited States, they had 

the fort over there and the A me r icans were in F o rt E r ie and they 

had the fort here . And, as I say ,  dur ing the peace negot iat ions, 

they j ust traded forts. The B r i t ish gave the A me r icans F ort N iagra 

o n  the A me r ican side and they gave us F ort E r i e .  The fort is still 

there,  the sa me or iginal shape it was. I th ink there would be somebody 

in  the N iagra Park C o m m ision who would give you a great deal 

o f  h istory on it ,  who knows it. Why it 's not used as a tourist attract ion, 

with j ust that one end of it , the A m e r icans would be awful pleased 

t o  c o m e  over here and see an A me r ican fort. I th ink as a tourist 

attraction it would be t e r r ific. I don't know why it hasn't been 

done. 

As far as the Peace B r idge,  if you've read A l's [S pear] book , 

A l  m ade a complete study of the b r idge,  com plete. H e's in a posit ion 

that h e  knows, being manager of the br idge he can get all the infor mation 

that you want .  Al 's a real s m a r t ,  sma r t ,  he's a smart boy. I reme m ber 

when he was managing Luc idol in Fort E r ie. 

W h at's that ? 

Lucidol Chemical on the G a r r ison Road at the railroad tracks. He 

m anaged that when he Made the applicat ion and got this j ob on 

the b r idge. I asked h i m  I sa id what t r a in ing did you have ? A nd he 

sai d  none whatsoever. H e  said they h ired an employ ment agency 

in H a m ilton to intervie w  the cand idates and he sa id I went down 

and he said I got the j ob. H e  got it on h is own mer its. If you've . . . ! 

would say if you read h is book and if there's any info r m at ion you 

n e e d ,  I would talk to A l. He's the type of fellow that will co6perate 

with you and be very very good and sincere with you on it. He' ll 

h e l p  you out alot . Other than that I can tell you they've done an 

a wful lot of bu ild ing and rebuild ing at both ends of the br idge and 

they've spent m illions of dollars and when Joe F rench was the manager 

h e  always wanted a Fort E r ie contractor to get the j ob, and A r chie 
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McGlashon had the j ob for years and years and years,  he did all 

the renovat ing j obs,  and just before . . .  just as we were finish ing 

up the last j ob A r ch ie did,  he dropped over dead. Joe F rench said 

well  the br idge w ill  take over and fin ish it,  we had about two or 

three weeks to go to f in ish the j ob, wh ich w e  did.  Another fellow 

tha t could tell you an awful lot about the br idge is Butch Belleperche. 

You know Butch ? Butch was superintendent of maintenance on 

the bridge , h e  knows the h istory of the bridge real well. He's on 

Inj ury Retirement now , has been for a few year s .  H is w ife is Al 's  

secretary and if  you get a . . . . .  if you called Butch Belleperche 

and could m ake an appoint ment , go up and see h i m  so m e  even ing 

or sometime afte r  5o' clock when his w ife's home from work,  she's  

st ill working on the br idge , still 's  Al 's  secretary, between the two 

of t h e m  they ' d  give you an awful lot of h istory on the bridge, because 

she's worked in the m anagers office up there for years and years 

and years, and Butch was super intendent on the bridge and he knows 

it from soup to nuts, ins ide out,  both s ides , the A m e r ican s ide and 

the C anadian s ide . That w ill  be where you'll get more info r m a t ion 

on the bridge than anybody that I can think of. Other than A l  S pear 

who made a com plete study of it . 

D.M: What can you tell me about C rystal Beach ? 

C.R: Well,  when the Halls owned it , it was a very thr iv ing bus iness. 

They used to have a big dance hall there and all the big name bands 

from the U n ited S tates used to come over there. 

D.M: W h ich bands ? 

C.R: O h ,  I forget the name of ' e m. But all the big name bands, I don't 

know who could tell you the names of them because I did'nt pay 

too m uch attention but I know I seen them when they came over. 

One band leader that was k illed in the war,  he was flying over to 

entertain the troops over there and h is plane got shot down over 

G e r many,  he playe d here, there was quite a few big bands,  big name 

band s .  I don't  know who ....  I ' m j u s t  t r y ing to think of who could 

talk to you about C rystal Beach , I don' t know ..... Halls , I don't  know 

them at all,  I knew the Bardols but I d idn't know the H alls. 

D.M: Tell m e  about the Bar dols. 

C.R: Well  Bardol had a h o m e  at the corner of Helena and the road along 

( the lake . . .  Edge m e re. They had a big , big white frame h ouse , it 's 

st ill there. Well there was three boys,  unfortunately,  shortly after 
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the old man d ie d ,  one son co m m ited su icide, and the othe r son beca m e  

a confirmed alcoholic . H e  l ived a long t i m e ,  h is home was built 

on the lakeshore r ight at the end of A lbert  S t reet.  If  you drove 

down you h it h is h o m e .  H e  was the last ,  there's Ed and Bob. Ed 

built a home on Thunder Bay R oad wh ich that hockey player out 

of Boston, you r e m e mber the fellow that drank h i m self out of a 

job ? He bough t that h o m e .  750 , 000 dolla r s ,  it 's  Sanderson.  P layed 

for Boston . H e  had a fortune.  He made it playing hockey and he 

blew everyth ing . H e  went r ight down t o  the very bottom, I t h ink 

he's  s t ill alive . But Ed died, the one boy com m itted suic ide and 

Bob, he j ust drank h imself t o  death 

D.M: D id you know Mr.  Bardol when he owned E r ie Beach ? 

C.R: I never met . . . .  never met h i m ,  nope he was never around.  I met h is 

w ife , Mrs ,  Bardol,  I knew h e r .  But h is w ifes s ister or h is s ister ,  

no.  It was Mr. Bardol 's  w ifes s ister ,  s h e  r a n  E r ie Beach C o m pany 

after . . . .  they still  had their c o m pany, they didn't sell out the com pany 

they just sold all the amusements .  I put a refr idgerator in there,  

I r e m e mber I had to have about e igh t m e n  putit in, it weighed over 

a ton.  It was a four doo r ,  18 cubic foot refridgerator,  I ' ll  never 

forget that , when w e  went over that porch we had to put planks 

down so we d idn't break the side porch going in.  Yeah, that was 

a beaut iful home when they had it,  oh boy .  Did you go in there after  

Knox moved out ? They had quite a settlement out there.  H e rb Milch 

was a lawyer over in Buffalo, and just at the back here old Jake 

Blakefield had a place,  h e  was a rag m a n !  He bought all the stuff 

the sch ineys picked up. 

D.M: The what ? 

C.R: S ch ineys we used to call the m .  

D.M: What's  that ? 

C.R: U se d  to go round holle r ing any old rags , bottles .  They'd chant on 

th is wagon as they drove around w ith their  horses,  call out on the 

street as they were going down if you had any old bottles , rags 

or  bones o r  anyth ing,  they would take all the garbage and then they' d 

take it and sell it to these j unk deale r s . Jake Blakefield was a . . .  h is 

father had a j unkyard over in Buffalo . W e  used to call them sch ineys ! 

They were nearly all J e w s .  They were running this rag business ,  

junk bus iness as it was calle d .  They m u s t  have made good m oney 

because those homes along the lakeshore ain't no cheap h o m e s ,  

S o m e  of the m are quite valuable . I re m e mber o n e  n ight I had to 
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go up there and w ire a yar d ,  one of the yards u p  there for a doctor. 

H e rb Milch was a lawyer and it was h is brother- in-law and he was 

having t h is party,  he was ...... we w ired up the back yard and oh 

boy what a wearing j ob and I said to him at the t i m e ,  now how do 

you want t h is ,  do you want th is put in s o  it w il l  last ? N o  no,  t o m o r row 

m o r n ing you can take it all  out. S o  w e  te m porarily w ired it in order  

to  get some ligh t ,  and he had everybody c o m e  out  to h is house t o  

th is party a n d  they all g o t  o u t  of their cars a n d  he h ired busses 

and he took them up t o  C r e scent Park t o  where that ch inese restaurant 

is now,  the big one on the r ight hand s ide, The May Wah ? H e  took 

'e m up there and they had d r inks and s o m et h ing to eat up there 

and then he brough t  'em back. He had a two car garage and the 

bartender f r o m  the S tatler Hotel.  H e  had a bar in there and oh 

what a party. The next morning we went up to take the stuff out 

and he said well I want it left in . I says we'll  have to t ake it and 

put it in over again if you want that l ight ing back in, I said I asked 

you if you wanted it in pe r m anantly and you said no. Well I said 

I j us t  w ired it tem porarily,  j ust  for the n igh t and that party went 

on ' t il about four or  five o' clock in the m o r n ing.  The lawyer ,  I w as 

good friends w ith the lawyer ,  he t old m e ,  h e  said he spent over 

15,000 dollars on that party. He rented a p iano from the S tatler 

Hotel,  he had all these m u sicians come over and he had a par t y ,  

I' m telling you ! He w a s  a batchelor and he was apparently a m ill ionaire 

and he was just spending h is money, he spent it!  Herb said to m e ,  

C h r is ,  y o u  never s a w  such a bunch o f  indians i n  a l l  y o u r  l ife ! He 

says they got drunk and they had a s w i m m ing pool  there and they 

were throw ing money in the s w i m m ing pool and the w o men and 

the m e n  were d iving in aft e r  the money w ith all their clothes on, 

all  their  party clothes on! H e  said you never saw such a bunch of 

hooligans in all your l ife ! Oh what a t i me. I th ink it  cost h i m  nearly 

a t h ousand dollars t o  l igh t the back yard up, just tem porar ily and 

take it all out the next day. He had the waiter,  the head waiter 

from the S tatler and all the d iffe rent places. They had no water 

up in E r ie B each you know they had ....  they all had to pu m p  the ir 

o w n  water,  and I was s it t ing on the F ort  E r ie C ouncil for a couple 

of years, H e rb Milch come to m e  and h e  said we'd l ike so m ebody 

t o  get water up there, so,  h e  was a lawyer and h e  knew all the 

finiggel ing and what to do and he said W e ' ll pay for everyth ing 

C h r is ,  we don't  want it for noth ing, w e ' ll pay. Well ,  there was no 
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water in E r ie Beach at this t i m e ,  on A lbe rt Street and in through that 

area and w e  w ould have to go th rough there, so then w e  had to 

go across Bardol 's  property and he owned from Bardol I think it 

is to the street on the other s ide if A lbert, he owned all that vacant 

property in there and they didn't want to spend the m oney cause 

it was nearly three quarters of a m ile of water main that had to 

be run th rough there, it had to be paid for . So Herb says well E rie 

B each Associa t ion,  we'll  pay for it. So they paid for the water line 

to go through there and they said what if the people in E r ie Beach, 

there was a poor degraded area down there,  what if they don't pay 

their bills ? He says we'll  take care of any deficiencies that you 

have . So they of course w e re all m illionaires in there and they didn't 

w o r ry about it and I got a . ... I got the water line through and he 

came down and he said Chr is now h e  said I want to take the F o rt 

E r ie C ouncil over to McVans N ight C lub, h e  said now ,  he said the 

part ies on me. You take it ... ... . ... . .  I t h ink there was 12 or 13 of 

us went ove r .  A n d  in this n igh t club h e  gave us a table r ight next 

to the stage and everything you mnt , everyth ing you wanted was 

there. They started out and they ordered d r inks,  well it took the 

girl ,  I th ink there was 19 of us s itt ing around the table,  it took 

her quite a w h ile t o  co m e  back so then they'd order doubles, then 

they were ordering t r iple s ,  when it come time to eat, they all 

looked at me because I was the inst igator to get the th ing going, 

you see ? So I picked the most expensive meal on the m enu out, 

well  then they started ! The bill was over 800 dollars for the nigh t .  

A n d  h e  said to  m e  C h r is i f  you don't g e t  t h e m  drunk a n d  g e t  the m 

stuffed so that they can't move,  he says I ' ll  k ick you all  over Fort  

E r ie ,  h e  says  now you m ake sure they do.  When we went out the 

own e r  of the n ight club, I forget h is n a m e ,  McVans it was,  but  it  

was a .£w that owned it ,  and Nels m e t  us at the doorway at 3o' clock 

in the mor n ing,  half past th ree in the m o r n ing when we left. We 

sat through three shows . . . . .  and they shook hands w ith everybody 

and h e  made sure thateverybody was well  sat isfied before we left. 

What a party we had that n igh t !  The only t i m e  we'd had a party 

like that in our life befo r e .  I don't  know what he paid for that,  it 

must have cost him close to two thousand dollars for the n igh t. 

D.M: When w as t h is ? 

C.R: I.. .I forget now .  I sat in the council for two years and I forget when 

I w as on there . Must be thirty years ago. S k ip Howe was the :Mayor 
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I r e m ember ,  you wouldn't  know Skip Howe I suppose. HE was an 

insurance agent in F o r t  Erie. Broadly .... you know Sargent Broadly 

that just retired off the police force, h is father was on there. Al 

Cur rant was a Custom Officer, Phil D uncan a railroad man; Doc 

R e id was a veterinary surgeon, used to be at the earner of Main 

and Conces s ion, Main and Concession, yeah, he uh.: .. � I think it's 

s t il l  a veterinary hospital isn't it, at the corner? Old D oc Reid, 

he married Cannon Be rt's daughter, Cannon Bert of the Anglican 

Church. B ill and I , w e  represented h im, we were in one; we were 

in war one, h e  and I. W e  were the two representatives. What a time 

we had in that counc il. When I stop to think now, they don't,;,, they're 

ashame d of what they're  do ing, they go into com mittee all the time, 

A l w ays going into committee. I went .... When I sat in that council 

we had only one n ight that we went into com m ittee and the fellow 

that was in X- rays at the hospital, his daughter was 15 years old; 

She got out one n ight and she got pregnant and he came down to 

the town to see if he could get some as sistance. So I got up and 

said I think in this case we should go into com mittee. She was only 

a l it tle girl 15 years old and I said I don't  think we should discuss 

th is in public. So we went into com m ittee on it and that was the 

only t i m e  that we d idn't  bring the facts and figures out for ever1body, 

we never had any t rou ble. They have at these council meetings, 

calling the police in t o  get them out and everything else. We never 

had that k ind of th ing.  We had fellows there that we re doing under 

the table t r icks, we'd b r ing it r ight out in the council meeting� I 

r e m ember one n ight I said to B ill Du ncan, I said Bill, w ill you take 

the cards out from under the table and put the m on the top so we 

can all see the m ? He wanted to sell a piece of property up the Gilmore 

Road here. Y ou know where the ind ust rial park is now ? Well fro m 

Warren St reet all the way up to the ...... there's a big vacant field 

and somebody came over here looking for the prope rty to buy it 

to put up a plant and he wanted to know what we wanted it for 

arid Duncan, he got wind of it see, and he was gonna have some body 

buy this property and h e'd sell it to them. He was gonna buy it for 

600 dollars, that whole great big block of ground, for 600 bu cks. 

I sa id,  1'11 sell the property for a dollar if the man w ill bu ild a plant 

here , and I said I ' ll give h i m  the dollar to pay fot it, if he' d  build 
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a plant,  but I said I won't sell it . . . . . . I said what are you gonna do w ith it ? 

Somebodies gonna graze sheep on it . They weren't gonna g raze 

sheep on it . They were gonna but it for peanuts and sell it to this 

person and make some m oney on it,  s o  anyway , the deal fell th rough , 

it never,  never developed but as I say, all our bus iness meet ings,  

any t i m e  we went to council ,  everyth ing was d iscussed in open.  

We d idn't have peoplr coming t o  our meetings,  there wasn't any 

people interested in coming o u t .  But one man I re m e m be r ,  the n ight 

manager of the R oyal Bank, sometimes he'd be the only man there . 

He was at every council meet ing we ever had.  H e  sat r ight at the 

rail . When the Mayor would ask if anybody had anyth ing to say, 

he'd never open h is mouth,  never say a word. H e'd j us t  sit  there 

and watch what we did.  Of course our bank account was in the Royal 

Bank . I guess he was, he was qu ite a s mart man, he got pro moted 

well up in the bank , the R oyal Bank , before he got finished .  I can't 

understand the way they ope rate now ,  I can't . . . . .  if they're elected 

by the people , why they don't d iscuss the peoples proble m s  in public, 

why do they have to go in h id ing ? I can't see that at all,  I don't 

know why they do it . 

D.M: What can you tell me about the blizzard of 1939 ? 

C.R: 1939, uh-huh . I happen to be sitting on the council at that t ime 

and I was chairman of the s t reets . . . . .  and the Mayor S k ip Howe 

called me New Years  m o rning,  2 o'clock, and he said Ch r is ,  you're 

the new chairman of the street s .  He said there's 7 feet of s now 

on the ground , both plows are broken down,  now get the t o w n  cleaned 

up, and he hung up the phon e .  S o  I got my snowshoes . . . . .  I went down 

to the and got m y  snowshoes out and I re m e m be r  seeing a bunch 

of cleat tracks at Horton Steel .  S o  there was about 30 men in Horton 

Steel ,  they were stuck there,  they couldn't get home, they were 

in the plant and I got up there and I said Mac ,  what about us ing 

s o m e  of these cleat tracks ? He said I haven't got no blades . I said 

gee w h iz .  There wasn't a thing m oving,  noth ing m oving.  

D.M: What's a cleat t rack ? 

C.R: These bulldozers w ith the . . . .  that they use for haul ing stuff around . 

But they had no blade s ,  they w e re just  used for m o v ing mach inery.  

So I said,  well M:ac ,  I said , how about taking the plow off one of 

the t rucks and putt ing it on the front ? No,  he said,  we can't do 

that . I said well  how about pushing the t ruck ? H e  said okay , we 

could do that, but he said h o w  are we gonna connect it up ? S o  we 
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thought for a wh ile and w e  called Walter Deitcher at the F leet,  

he had about, oh,  30 or  40 m e n  in  there,  they were stuck, they couldn't 

get out. So we called h i m  up and he was stuck in the office, he 

couldn't get out so we said h o w  about making a bar , can you make 

us a bar out of air plane steel  t o  push the t ruck ? Yeah ,  sure, okay. 

S o  I said fine . J i m m y  F lake, that's J i m m y's old man now,  h is fathe r ,  

he said he'd d r ive t h e  truck, h e'd d r ive t h e  cleat track,  no w inshield 

on it,  noth ing, j ust sat on the seat in the w ide open. So we went 

down on one of these t h ings,  I stood in the back of it and we went 

down and we got the t ruck and hooked on the truck at F inches 

Garage, that was on where F reelands Travel Agency is now . It was 

a Dodge t ruck and we towed it up t o  the F leet and they made a 

bar. The Mayor, he came d o w n  and rode up in the truck.  W e  got 

in the truck and I steered the t ruck, well we got up there,  3 o'clock 

in the morning w e  got the bar finish e d .  We started down the road. 

Well,  we got down G il m o r e  a w ays, and all of a sudden the t ruck 

would go in the d itch that way and the cleat t rack in th is way, 

back it up and h it it again ! I looked out the w indow of the t ruck 

and here's all the guys from the F leet co m ing down behind us. I 

said what in the world are they gonna do when we get to the boulevard ? 

So, I said,  I don't care what they're gonna do, when this t ruck h it s  

t h e  boulevard,  I s a i d  he's g o n n a  t u r n  and go o v e r  t o  B e r t ie S t reet 

and get the Hospital open.  Th en I said he'll go across Concession 

and come down every other s t reet, and back up. One t rack s o  the 

a m bulance can go up and they can w alk one block that way and 

one block that way. Well,  that went on for ,  oh, 3 days. And we got 

the town slowly out. They called m e  from Toronto and the Minister 

there s ays do you need any food ? We'll send down some milk and 

bread . I said no, the re's no sense in sending us m ilk and bread, I 

said the grocery stores have all got groceries,  but I said they've 

got 18 feet of snow on their front door .  You can't get in them. 

I said how are they gonna get t o  the railroad stat ion t o  get the 

m ilk and bread ? I said they can't get there. I said what I want is 

some plows .  I said how about loaning some plow s ? He said I got 

19 plo w s  broken down bet w e e n  Toronto and F ort E r ie. He said I 

can't do a th ing to help you . W ell,  w e  pushed around and we got 

the town cleared out pretty well ,  we were a long t i m e  doing it and 

we had to get A rch ie McG lashon's steam shovel. He had an old shovel 

there, a deep t rack thing and w e  l ifted the snow and hauled it dow n  
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in t rucks and d u m ped it in the r iver t o  get Jarvis S treet ope n .  It took 

a week to get the town ope n .  Oh, it was someth ing . And that was 

one stor m .  Then I was in the m idst of the last storm we had . . . . .  . 

The last b ig storm we had.  

When was that ? 

It was in the seventies.  

'77 ? 

No,  I don' t th ink it was '77. I could have been. I had the . . . . my business 

then and I happen t o  be the center station because I was in . . . .  We 

d is patched all  the fire c o m panies and the fire com panies were 

in charge of everything.  D u r ing that storm . . . .  I could see it com ing, 

I called all the operators in and there was one girl  who couldn't get 

in and I called the police and they went out w ith a c r u iser  and brought 

her in . I beat it down, I saw the stor m c o m ing so I went down to the 

grocery store and I bought a load of groceries , got the m up in the 

place and w e  starte d .  A s  we were the central stat ion,  S t  .Catherines 

called m e  and said we want s n o w m o b iles to patrol the h igh ways . 

He says we' d l ike to have 2 g o  up n o .  3 and no.  3c and down the 

boulevard .  So I hung up the phone and I thought where a m  I gonna 

get snow m o b iles ? So I called N ichols Mar ina and I said Blake, have 

you got any snowmobiles ? He said no. S o  I called Bud Willia m s ,  

I said Bud,  you've,got a snow m obile s it t ing at your place,  I said 

w e ' ve gotta get some snow m ob iles . Well,  he says it ; s  here but I' m 

not gonna dr ive it , he say s ,  you can have it and he said s o mebody 

w ill dr ive it . A l r ight so, Blake said there was a snow m o b ile club 

and they gave me a guys name and h e  was stuck in the F leet that 

t i m e  and I called u p  him and I got a hold of h im and he was head 

of some club that had disbanded,  but h e  knew everybody had snowmobiles . 

I called h im and h e  got stuck going f r o m  F leet up to R idge R oad 

and h e  finally got home, and h e  calle d me up and w ithin two hours 

h e  had 30 snow mobiles on the road . . . . . .  and I said well alrigh t ,  send 

2 down no.  3 and send 2 down to Garr ison , send one out to Stevensville, 

and what you got to look for is cars s t uck to see if people are froze n .  

t h e y  found o n e  w o m an who was 3 h o u r s  on Rosehill  road and she 

was running her car to keep war m  and her car had run out of gas, 

and they j us t  got her in the n ick of t ime. They got her in and there 

was a car stuck in front of Th ibodeus Landscaping place on Dom in ion 

Road.  And they got up and they got chains on it and they pulle d 

it off and there was another car underneath it .  He drove r ight up 
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over top he didn't  know there was another car there buried in the 

sno w !  Well,  we uh , f inally uh , there was no elect r icity,  you couldn't  

pu m p  any gas,  couldn't  get gas for the snow mobile s ,  w e  had an awful 

t i m e  and I had an eme r gency l ight ing plant in my shop runn ing on 

gasoline, it run out of gas , we had no power .  The phones were all 

out , everyth ing was out so I had to get my car,  park it up alongs ide 

the build ing and hook my gastank up ' t il I run that dry. F inally they 

was able to get gas, s o m e body got a road open into S tevensv ille , 

so the police went to S t evensville and brought me down five gallons 

of gas . And then they got power up Bertie S t reet to the h ospital 

so the hospital could run . . . .  and the fellow who had the gas stat ion 

at the corner of G il m o re and Central . .  . .  Or Bert ie and Central and 

everybody v1as gett ing there cars out and they were all lined up 

to buy gas and you couldn' t get into the place so I just called the 

police and I said I need gas , I gotta have gas I said I' m running out , 

my car w ill  soon be out of gas . So they came over and got a five 

gallon can and they went up and they got m e  gas and brough t it 

down and we were able to keep going. The snow was so deep,  we 

had everybodies caterpillars and everything,  all the e quip ment 

we could get and I r e m e m b e r  up at Thunder Bay, w e  had to get 

the fellows in to d r ive the big bulldozers that they had at the quarry . 

They were operators ,  they were the only ones that could operate 

the m ,  had to b r ing them in from somewhere around Kingston,  but 

they got here and they plo w e d  the road crossw ise and they piled 

the snow r ight up over the telephone w ires . One w o m an called me 

on the Thom pson Road and she said the sno w mobile just knocked 

the ae rial off m y  roof!  I said yeah , I said uh . .. . .  she said I heard 

the th ing and tha aer ial fell down, she says I can't see out , I can' t 

get out . I said where are you located ? She t old m e  and I said well 

lookit I . .  . . . She said I' m fine,  I got heat and I got ligh t s  and I got 

grocer ies. Yeah ,  I says , if s o meth ing happened to you, they don' t 

even see your house , your h ouse is bur ied .  I said I better have somebody 

come up and shovel you out ,  I ' ll  get some fire man to c o m e  up and 

shovel you out . She says alrigh t ,  but tell them there's  my car s itt ing 

in the d r iveway and it' s a brand new car,  tell the m not to d ig into 

that ! I said alright. So, they went up and they dug her out and she 

calle d up and she says that m y  ch imney's  knocked off!  I said what 

kind of heat do you have , she says gas , well I said then you' ll  be 

al r igh t ,  it won't  hurt, I said gas don't r e quire any draft , so you' ll  

be okay there. I said did they get your . . . . .  Yeah ,  they got m e  plowed 
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out she said, they dug me out and I can see out on the street now .  

She couldn't see out her front door,  out her w indows o r  anyt h ing,  

her house was completely b u r ied. They called me from St.  Cath e r ines 

and they said don't worry, w e  got all k inds of generators,  we got 

a dozen of them here. I said what good are they in St.  Catherines ? 

I said the snow's r ight up t o  the top of the overpasses on the Queen 

Elizabeth,  nothing can get th rough , I said what good are they in 

S t .  Cathe rines ? They're no good to me! I said anothe r  t h ing, I said 

if w e  have the m ,  we can't get gasoline to run them anyway. Well 

finally they called me and they said,  how's you r  elec t r icity in F ort 

E r ie .  I said I don't know but I'll  find out,  I'll call  you back . S o  I called 

the Power Com pany and I said Harvey, I said Harvey, h ow's the 

power ? He said Ch ris,  we're hooking u p  the last 3 houses up in on 

D o m inion R oad near Thunder Bay,  he says there's 3 houses to be 

connected up and we're 100 percent back in service . S o  I called 

him back and I said w ithin half an hou r ,  the whole town w ill  have 

electr icity, the whole area.  Oh , I don't believe it ! I said I j u s t  talked 

to the Power Co m pany and they're on the last three houses now , 

they'll finish the m up and w e'll have power everywhe r e .  I could 

see it com ing,  I could see we were going to run out of oil. There 

was no oil delivery, so I called the oil com pany that had these o il 

d r u m s ,  used to be over here where the lu m ber com pany is . H e  was 

in N iagra F alls,  I said people are gonna start running out of oil 

very shortly, he says Ch r is ,  I can't do noth ing about it ,  I'm down 

her e !  I can't get out of N iagra F alls , s o  I'll  tell you ,  the keys for 

the tank and the t ruck are in the meter box up there ins ide the 

fence . I said alrigh t ,  so I called up the F ire Hall and I said w ill you 

br ing a snow m o b ile over and take me up to the oil tanks there,  and 

they said yeah . Well if you ever rode on a snow mobile, t rying to 

hold you r  overcoat closed and t r ied to h old on to the sno w m ob ile 

and those guys don't d r ive s lo w !  They h it 'e m w ide open all the way! 

We went across Concess ion u p  to G il m ore and I got there and then he 

left me! I walked over the fence,  I didn't have to climb over it , you 

just  walked over it , the snow was r igh t over top of the fence and 

I opened the meter box and I got in there and it was all full of snow 

and I'm digging the snow out and I can't find no keys . The snow mobile 

had left me up there . Oh h o  was I ever col d !  I had a s p r ing coat , 

that was all I had on,  and I got hold of one of the Passero's , h e  ran 

the restaurant in where the laundromat is now . So he came up w ith 
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h is truck and brought m e  back down to h is restaurant and I called 

and I said send a snow mobile over and br ing m e  back t o  the office . 

S o  they did and I called N iagra Falls and I said I can't find no keys . 

Well,  he said the d r iver m u s t  have the m .  So I calle d the d r iver and 

he lives on College S t reet at the Queen E. That's on the other s ide 

of R idge mont R oad. I called h im and he says yeah , I got the keys 

in m y  pocket. I said we gotta get oil ,  I said people are gonna start 

running out of oil  and we have no h eat . He said alr ight . I says well 

look it , I'll send a couple of sno w m obiles out to  get the keys , we 

couldn't send one because if one got stuck,  w e  had to send t w o .  

He said that's fine , he said I'll come i n  w ith the m .  I said how are 

you s ituated ? Have you got a .. . .  you can't d r ive . . . . .  he says I got 

a sno w m ob ile,  he says I got a good one . He said just tell them to 

be careful of the dog when they get  here.  A l r ight ,  so I sent  t w o  

snow mobiles o u t  t h e r e  a n d  they g o t  h i m  a n d  t h e y  brought h i m  i n .  

So we started . .. . .  H o w  a r e  w e  gonna g e t  t h e  o il around ? S o  I called 

Pratt & Lamberts,  I said w e  need five gallon can s .  H e  said Chr is ,  

we g o t  all k inds of t h e m  u p  there,  b u t  he say s ,  I don't k n o w  h o w  

we're gonna get the m ,  he says a couple of o u r  men a r e  on t h e  F ire 

Depar t ment , he says tell the m .  Tell them to go in and help the m selves . 

S o  the F ire Depart ment went u p  and got the cans, we went u p  and 

we filled these five gallon cans w ith oil and sh ipped them. P eople 

called in and they had no o il so we'd send them ten gallons of 

oil .  W e  had to keep doing that to keep their houses going. The A r m y  

came i n  with a n  e igh t wheel dr ive truck. The t o w n  was closed u p  

com pletely. The Tow n  Hall h a d  noth ing doing there so w e  billetted 

them there,  they s tayed in the Tow n  Hall .  We got the m deliver ing 

oil w ith sno w m o b iles and they had about 25 men in their truck and 

they'd get out and when the t ruck w ould get stuck they'd shovel 

it out and away they'd go again ! And I reme mber one woman ,  she 

called in . . . .  ten gallons of o il was no good to her, she wanted a hundred 

gallons , and I said lady ,  take ten gallons and be happy , then I j u s t  

h u n g  u p .  G irve F retz w a s  the Mayor at the t i m e  a n d  I called G irve 

and I said G irve,  t h is woman here in the low rent ing outfit,  I said 

she doesn't want . . .  she wouldn't take ten gallons of oil ,  she wants 

a hundred gallons of oil .  I said we're not deliver ing no hundred gallons 

of oil !  I said where she's located,  the snow's over e ight feet deep !  

I said we gotta do i t  b y  snow m obile a n d  nobody can g e t  i n  ther e .  
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Now I said , if she calls you for oil,  you tell her to call me. Because I said 

I' m not send ing any oil up there, if she's not sat isfied . . . . . . .  

We had people calling, would w e  go and get the m c igarettes ? 

We're out of c igarettes ! I said lady,  you're gonna have to quit . It 's  

a good th ing for you , I said you can quit s m oking now ! We had to 

get groce r ie s ,  deliver groceries,  uh oh ! What a t i m e !  My girls worke d ,  

I h a d  blankets a n d  that , t h e y  worked around t h e  clock . They' d go 

and have a sleep and c o m e  back. I brough t  in a whole load of groce r ies 

so we could all eat . You couldn't get out the door, you couldn't open 

our front door. What a t ime w e  had. They never mentioned anyth ing 

about it but we were the key to the whole s to r m ,  because all the 

messages being connected to the radio w ith N iagra F alls and S t .  

Cather ines a n d  a l l  around there a n d  S t .  Cathe r ines would radio 

our place and we'd  talk back and forth on the radio w ith them and 

find out what we were doing . But I guess w e  were two weeks before 

we got the traffic m o v ing half decen t .  A bus was stuck on the Sodom 

Road and one of the b ig cont ractors , h e  went out in a great b ig bulldozer 

and towed the bus in, it was full of school kids,  so he got them in . 

We d idn' t . . . .  nobody got seriously hurt o r  frozen on the deal, everybody . . . 

We were lucky , we had two o r  three close calls , but we got them 

mostly all in . But they never said anyth ing about that,  we were 

sitting there back, we were the F ire Depar t ment,  you see, we answ e red 

all the phone calls , that was the only th ing they knew about us.  

Then I had a . . . . . . we had an awful mess to  keep the town rolling . 

That was t w o  stor m s  I went th rough , I went through the big one 

when I was on the counc il and I went th rough this one and I don't 

know what they'll do now . The fellow that bought m y  bus iness ,  they 

tell m e  that he hasn't c o m e  down to see it . 

D.M: Wh ich business is that ? 

C.R: W ren Alar m s .  Now h e  came in and bough t the th ing out .  I don't 

know what he's  doing, how he's doing, I haven't . . . . . .  I saw h im once 

after I sold out an d that was i t .  

D.M: 

C.R: 

D.M: 

C.R: 

When d id you start the bus ines s ? 

When did h e  take over ? Oh , I 've been out now for 7 or 8 yea r s .  

N o ,  w h e n  d i d  y o u  s t a r t  the bus iness ? 

When d id I start  it ? Oh in about '7 5 I guess. I started u p  when Regional 

Government took ove r .  Because I had m y  ala r m  panel in the police 

station and we got orders to take it out .  I had two weeks . And Oh 
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boy , what a t i m e  I had there , I called Don Scott,  he was chairman 

of the Regional P olice , that 's  the j udge that just d ied here a short 

while ago . I called Don and I went . . . . . .  Don had a meeting w ith 

him and he said he couldn't do nothing, every place ,  he said, . . . . . .  . 

. . . . . . . . . . . .  I sa id lookit , N iagra F alls hasn't got this type of syste m ,  

they haven't got i t .  S t .  Catherines ,  I saict , you have all kinds of 

an swer ing services,  you can move th e m  into . . . . . . .  I said we haven't 

got a thing. He says well ,  it has to be done . Well we started. I had 

two weeks . I had to buy the building, and wh ile I ' m buying that 

I had to start gett ing ready to transfe r the . . . .  m y  stuff from the 

police station over to m y  building,  well then they had nobody to 

d ispatch the fire com panie s ,  so I got  a contract w ith them that 

I 'd  d ispatch all the fire calls , so when you called for a fire , it goes 

into my place,  it don't go into the town at all .  It goes into m y  place 

and we have radios and everything there and we radio the fire depart ments 

and send the fire depart ment out and I know that they . . . . .  I went 

over one time when C reach was the t reasurer of the town and I 

said I gotta have m o re m oney I said r.w girls want more money. 

I said to h i m  I said look , the C . U . P . E .  U n ion is t ry ing to organize 

my girls and I said if I don't  pay them r::10re them they're gonna 

organize . He says we don't  want that , we don't want that , h e  says 

how m uch you want ? I said t h is is how much I want , no m o r e .  The 

next day I got m y  check through , cleared,  just  like that . I said I i'.lon' t  

want no C . U . P . E .  Union in there,  a n d  I found o u t  t h e n  that h e  sat 

down and figured out . . . .  the girls in h is office were gett ing five 

t i m es as much pay as what m y  girls were getting.  I said that's  

a crime, I said I ' m still  not gonna get up to their wage s ,  I don't 

expect t o .  I said one t h ing,  I said , you . . . . . .  alot of your girls working 

here, I said,  they couldn't  work for me because they couldn't handle 

it . I said my girls are worth m o re than that , I said well  you pay 

them f ive times as much as m y  girls get ,  I said . . . . . .  He said well ,  

that's the cas e ,  he said , we can't do anyth ing about it .  I finally 

decided when I hit sevent y ,  I said , I ' ll  ret ire . I 'll  get out . Th is chap 

that came in t o  see me, I never saw anyth ing like it .  He walked 

in the door, he said I hear you want to sell out and ret i r e ,  I said 

yeah . He says I don' t care what you want for it , I gotta have it . 

I said well  here's  m y  ask ing p r ice,  he says I 'll  take it . Just l ike that . 
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Then he said what about the build ing ? Well,  I said,  I don't want 

to sell the building, I said I ' l l  give you a long term lease . H e  said 

no,  I got too m uch money involved here,  he said , I ' ll  tell you what , 

you get the building evaluated an d I ' ll  get the building evaluated,  

whichever the h ighest ,  I ' ll  give you ten percent more.  He nearly 

floored me w ith that ! So,  he went out the door and I called the 

bank and I said check on that guys credit w ill  ya ? They called 

m e  back in half an hour and said give him a m illion dollars credit 

if he wants it ,  j ust  like that . And, h e  took ove r .  What a mess he 

had to star t ,  he decided to m ove the office into one room from 

the back,  where I had them in the safety roo m ,  u p  to the fr ont 

office . He sai d to me, would you c o m e  down and give us a hand, 

t o  change the w ires ove r ? I said yeah . I walked in there and h is m en 

went back and we had two o r  three hundred pair of cables com ing 

in and they j ust  took a pair of pliers and they cut . I said where 

are you gonna hook those w ires up ? I took one look at it and I turned 

around and I walked out . No way !  I th ink he was t w o  o r  three weeks 

before he got h is phones connected up.  What a m e s s !  Good job there 

was no fires or  noth ing ! They couldn't get a hold of the fire department.  

He had one awful  mess .  A pparently he got  it straigtened away.  

I built all  my own e quipment,  I didn 't  buy anything, I built m y  o w n  

stat ion . O n e  of the girls t o l d  me here,  n o t  so long a g o ,  that she said 

you know, Ch ris ,  there's s o m e  of your old stuff left in there and 

it 's  st ill working, that's the only one we don't have any t rouble 

w ith.  He bought all new . . . .  H e  don't . . . . .  H e  hasn't a clue I don't 

th ink . He's j ust a bus inessman,  he just operates a business. The 

telephone com pany came to m e  and said if you take the answ e r ing 

boards,  he said, w e ; ll give you an ans w e r ing board and we won't  

put any more in F ort Erie.  Y ou've got an exclusive righ t .  Nobody 

could come in.  Nobody could come in and start up a business 

becaus e ,  he said,  we've got f ive boards out in Fort E r ie and he 

said every one is los ing money,  we're losing money . He said,  so 

if you' ll  take the board,  we'll concentrate all in one, he said we'll  

put a 300 pair  cable in, it 'll  cost 120 0  dollars ,  he says you pay half 

and we'll  pay half,  that was 600 dollars ,  I said okay.  When they 

got through they sent m e  a b ill for 1200 dollars.  S o  I called the m 

up and I said,  look it ,  what goes on here ? Y ou told me it would be 

6 0 0 .  H e  says well,  h e  said w e  underest imated.  I said that's just  

too bad . I said I' m gonna pay you 600 and that 's  all I ' m  gonna pay 
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you . I said when I quote for a j o b ,  if I quote for a j o b  and I say t w o  

thousand dollars a n d  it c o s t s  m e  t h r e e ,  I s a y ,  I s t ill g o t t a  do i t  for 

two thousand dolla r s .
_ 
I said that's my quote and that's it and that' s 

all I ' m gonna pay you . S o ,  h e  said all r igh t ,  and that was it .  I said 

lookit , I say s ,  I d idn't  want the cables running th rough my build ing . 

S o  I said I put the fishes in so you could fish the w ire in.  I said your 

t ruck come down here and I said , w ith the reel of w ire on and 

they pulled u p  to the manhole and I said they hooked on to m y  w ires 

and pulled it through , I said,  they weren't  a half an hour putt ing 

the wire in and I said I didn't  charge you for that , I said they d idn't  

have to fasten a t h ing.  All they had to do was hook on to the w ire 

and pull it th rough . I said okay. When they got all finished and we 

had no service . . . . .  boy oh boy , we had no phone s ,  we w e re w ithout 

phones for about 6 o r  7 hou r s ,  if anybody had a fire, if anybody 

wanted a doctor, they couldn't get them . I had all the doctors 

and the F ire Depart ment and alot of bus inesses on there, plu m bers 

and th ings l ike that , they were on it . If you wanted them . . .  When 

you calle d ,  y ou 1got our office and then we'd hook the m through 

t o  the . . . . .  if they were there . Doctors won't  give out their phone 

n u m be r s ,  you can't phone a doctor at h is h o m e ,  but they would 

phone and we'd  an swer the phone and say it 's  Doctor So-and-sos 

office . . . .  I ' d l ike to s peak to the Doctor . . . . .  Wh at do you want , 

just  a m o ment . . . . .  W e ' d  put the m on hold,  call the doctor and say 

there's a certain party on the l ine and they'd say, Tell them to 

go to the hospital,  they' d meet them there or  sometimes,  very 

few of them would say well put them on the line,  so we' d cut through 

and they could talk to the m ,  but there was very few doctors that 

w ould do that . I th ink D r .  Docherty is the only D r .  in t o w n  that's 

got h is home phone n u m ber listed in the book . It  was quite an experience 

we had there . S o m e t h ing new we'd  never done before.  I pu a syste m 

in at P ratt & L a m  be rts  that at five o'clock at n ight everybody 

went h o m e ,  and the plant was in full productio n .  If anyth ing went 

w rong, it would s ignal m y  office that there was t rouble . We'd  call  

the maintenance m an and they' d go down and when they got into 

their office they could look u p  and see what mach ine it was and 

they could go and fix it .  That's  all a watch man does.  He finds out 

what's w rong, he can't fix anyth ing, he's gotta call the maintenance 

man. I did that a P ratt & L a m bert  and I did  it at Luc idol C h e m ical 
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C o m pany, when A l  S pear was m anaging, I put it in up there . Then 

they wanted me to go over to  Buffalo and do it over there . I couldn't 

see going over to Buffalo, it was a very foolish m istake I made, 

I should have rented the telephone cable from Buffalo to F ort E r ie 

and I could have taken all the calls at F ort E r ie and d ispatched 

the men out fro m here . But it  was one th ing that slipped m y  m ind 

and I never even thought about it unt il I was out of business .  I 

could have done that quite easily,  I 'd  have had an awful business 

over there because they . . . . . . . .  Luc idol wanted m e  to go up there 

to R ochester,  see,  their plant blew up . . . . . . .  big hole in the ground 

when their plant blew and they m oved r ight out into a populated 

area, I th ink they k illed about 7 or  8 people on the street and w recked 

I forget how m any homes when it blew . We had to put all the safety 

e quipment in for the m .  We never had any proble m s  w ith our syste m ,  

our system worked real good a n d  w e  never . . . . . .  we had t o  des ign 

everyth ing ourselves and build it because nobodies done it before . 

D.M: It was n ice talk ing to you C h r is .  

C . R :  We had alot of f u n  i n  this t o w n  anyway . 

[ A s  I was leav ing C h ris 's  hou s e ,  he remarked that he was the kind 

of guy who when he got u p  in the morning, he had noth ing t o  do,  

but when he went to bed at n igh t ,  he only had it half done ! ]  
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